
PROPOSED AGENDA 

Meeting of the Town of Biltmore Forest 
Board of Commissioners 

To be held Tuesday, September 13, 2016 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

A. Roll Call by the Clerk 

Mayor George F. Goosmann, III 
Commissioner Fran G. Cogburn 
Commissioner E. Glenn Kelly 
Commissioner Doris P. Loomis 

B. Approval of the Minutes 
1. The minutes of the August 16, 2016 meeting will be presented for approval. 

 
C. Reports of Officers 

1. Chief of Skyland Fire and Rescue 
2. Chief of Police 
3. Public Works Director 
4. Town Administrator  

 
D. New Business 

1. Request for Amendment to Existing Sign by Johnson, Vollmerhausen, & Gates 
PLLC (located at 1265 Hendersonville Road) 

2. Presentation from MAHEC regarding Secondary Driveway Access onto 
Vanderbilt Road 

3. Presentation and Discussion of Amendments to Tree Protection Ordinance 
4. Consideration of Amendment to FY16-17 Fee Schedule for Water Taps 

 
E. Petitions, Motions, and Other Business 

 
F. Public Comment 

 
G. Adjourn 

 



 1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COMMISSIONERS OF 
BILTMORE FOREST HELD AUGUST 16, 2016. 

 
Be it remembered by those that follow these proceedings that the Governing Board of the 

Town of Biltmore Forest met and conducted the following business: 

 

Roll call by the Clerk: 

 

Mayor George F. Goosmann, III, present 

Commissioner Fran G. Cogburn, present 

Commissioner E. Glenn Kelly, present 

Commissioner Doris P. Loomis, present 

 

Mr. Jonathan Kanipe, the Town Administrator, and Mr. William Clarke, the Town 

Attorney, were also in attendance. 

 

Mayor Goosmann called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 

 

Commissioner Cogburn made a motion to approve the July 12, 2016 minutes. 

Commissioner Kelly seconded and the minutes were unanimously approved.  

 

Mayor Goosmann asked Mrs. Diane Zimmerman to present plans for the Community 

Committee architecture and history presentation that will occur on October 2, 2016 in the Town 

Hall social room.  

 

 Mrs. Zimmerman said the committee is collecting information from residents and other 

sources between the years of 1920-1929. In having all of this information, Mrs. Zimmerman asked 

if the committee could get some display cabinets for this presentation on October 2nd. The cabinets 

need refinishing and Mrs. Zimmerman said her husband, Paul offered to do the work on this 

project.  

 

 



 2 

Mrs. Zimmerman asked the Town for $500 to purchase and refurbish these cabinets. The 

cabinets would be purchased by the Town from Mr. Jack Thomson. Commissioner Kelly inquired 

as to what type of wood was used for the cabinets. Mrs. Zimmerman said the cabinets are made 

out of poplar wood. Commissioner Kelly thought this was a great idea. Commissioner Loomis 

made a motion for approval of the $500 for refurbishing the cabinets. Commissioner Kelly 

seconded the motion and was unanimously approved.  

 

Assistant Fire Chief, Ryan Cole, representing the Skyland Fire Department gave the 

monthly report. The review from the Department of Insurance was successful. The rating should 

be known very shortly. Overall, it was a routine month for the fire department and we received 

about 25 calls for the month. Mr. Cole also mentioned to service your HVAC unit and make sure 

filters are changed to prevent fires. Mayor Goosmann thanked Skyland Fire Department for all 

they do for the Town.  

 

Mayor Goosmann asked Chief Tinsley for the Police Department report. Chief Tinsley said 

it was a busy month. No major crimes occurred but there were three deaths including one traffic 

fatality. Chief Tinsley mentioned a ten year old boy from a doctor’s office on Hendersonville Road 

ran off into the woods and officers had to go after him. Mayor Goosmann thanked the Police 

Department for all they do for the Town.  

 

Mayor Goosmann asked Mr. Terry Crouch for the Public Works monthly report. The new 

recycling truck will be here at the end of September. The striping and paving will occur around 

the beginning of September. Mr. Kanipe suggested putting in an entrance and exit arrow on the 

ground at the Town Hall complex as there has been an increase in people going the wrong direction 

in and out of the complex. The Board agreed with this idea, and Mr. Crouch said he will work on 

this matter. 

 

Mr. Kanipe gave his monthly report with an update on the Board of Adjustment meeting. 

There was a new home proposal for 19 Ridgefield which was the former Pulliam house. This is 

where the swimming pool is located on the lot. The placement of the house is based around where 

the swimming pool is located. This project was approved.  



 3 

 

There were several other Conditional Use Permits approved. One was the Reynolds’ 

residence on Cedarcliff Road for a detached garage. There was also a side yard setback variance 

for Mr. and Mrs. Veach on Cedarcliff Road.   

 

The Holls at 1 Stuyvesant Road had a replacement fence around their pool approved. Mr. 

Kanipe noted that they ended up moving the fence a bit closer to the pool as a result of the new 

ordinance that went into effect regarding fence requirements,.  

 

A company called Intrensic gave a presentation to the police department regarding body 

cameras. These cameras offer a lot more resolution and the cameras back up automatically by 

going to the cloud. We will have some more information for you within the next few months. 

Commissioner Kelly asked if we would be able to apply for a grant for these cameras. Mr. Kanipe 

said we may be able to apply for the hardware but we will look into that.  

 

We are also working on getting the survey completed for the Public Works building. The 

cabling project is finished. We have everything moved out of the basement except for the analog 

phone system. It has been moved to Town Hall and some components have been moved upstairs 

at the Police Department.  

 

One thing we have also talked about is having residents pay for their bills via credit card. 

We are working on the vendor who we would be using which is most likely going to be Official 

Payments. This company handles Black Mountain, Weaverville, and some IRS payments. The fees 

would be added on to the person making the payment and not to the Town. We should have this 

going within the next couple of months.  

 

The next topic discussed was VC3 and voiceover internet phone service. Mr. Kanipe 

presented the proposal to make changes to our phone system that would, most importantly, result 

in redundancy of service especially if we encountered an emergency situation like last year. This 

new system would really help the police department for emergency calls as well as public works 



 4 

and the town hall. It would give the Town a lot more functionality and flexibility in case the phones 

were to go down.  

 

 Included in the quote was a one-time charge that was approximately $5,000 for setup work 

related to the service. That is similar to the amount of money spent last year in repairs when the 

phone system went down. 

 

Commissioner Loomis made a motion to approve the one-time fee for VC3 and the 

voiceover internet service agreement. Commissioner Cogburn seconded the motion and it was 

unanimously approved.  

 

Regarding the AMI water meter project, Mr. Kanipe relayed his meeting with the Carolina 

Meter representative. Mr. Kanipe explained how the upload worked as Public Works gets the meter 

readings and the readings are sent to the Town Hall. Commissioner Kelly asked if we would get 

the $9,600 back in sales tax. Mr. Kanipe said he believed this would be the case. Additionally, 

residents can have it set up to where they can see how much water they are using by downloading 

an app for their phone or monitoring it on a computer. 

 

Commissioner Kelly asked if this project was included in the budgeted for FY16-17. Mr. 

Kanipe said yes and reminded the Board that a budget amendment was approved in the May 

meeting that would have provided for the start of this project. This was not able to begin at that 

time, however, so this money rolled into the water fund net assets. Mr. Kanipe indicated that a 

budget amendment might be likely in the next month to finalize the project. Commissioner Kelly 

moved to accept a motion for the automatic water meters for $146,840. Commissioner Cogburn 

seconded the motion and was unanimously approved.  

 

Mr. Kanipe mentioned the proposal from Buckeye Construction for the water line. This 

proposal is for $44,121 which is what we requested and we would like to put an additional $2,000 

because we would like to add two additional fire hydrants. The total we are asking for is $46,121.  

 



 5 

Commissioner Loomis made a motion to approve the proposal for $46,121 from Buckeye 

Construction which would include the two additional fire hydrants. Commissioner Cogburn 

seconded the motion and was unanimously approved.  

 

The next item discussed is the collecting of funds and the consideration of the Tax 

Settlement for FY 2015-16 year. Board members were given the financial report and on the back 

of the report showed a list of delinquent taxes.  

 

A motion was made to approve the Annual Tax Settlement by Commissioner Cogburn. 

Commissioner Kelly seconded the motion and was unanimously approved.  

 

Mr. Kanipe then presented the 2016 Order of Tax Collection which gives Helen the 

authority to send the tax bills. Tax bills will go out as soon as we receive the tax scroll from 

Buncombe County.  

 

Commissioner Loomis made a motion to approve the 2016 Order of Tax Collection. 

Commissioner Cogburn seconded the motion and was unanimously approved.  

 

Mrs. Joyce Young thanked the Town staff for putting on the 4th of July picnic.  

 

A motion was made by Commissioner Cogburn to go into Closed Session at 5:20 pm, 

seconded by Commissioner Kelly and unanimously approved. 

 

At 5:26pm the session went back to an open meeting. There being no further business, 

Mayor Goosmann adjourned the meeting at 5:27 pm. The next Board of Commissioners meeting is 

scheduled for Tuesday, September 13th at 4:30 pm.  

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 



 6 

 

_______________________________   __________________________ 

Jonathan B. Kanipe     George F. Goosmann, III 
Town Administrator     Mayor 



















 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 

To: Mayor and Commissioners 
From: Jonathan Kanipe, Town Administrator 
Re: Town Administrator Report 
Date: September 8, 2016 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Waterline Construction along Vanderbilt Road 

Buckeye Construction was awarded the 10” waterline construction project at the northern 
end of Vanderbilt Road during last month’s meeting. They began work late last week and anticipate 
being finished with the majority of the work by next week. Buckeye anticipates testing the line 
and hopes to have the work finalized by October 2nd. 

Annual Paving and Resurfacing 

 The asphalt company handling this year’s resurfacing and repaving scheduled hopes to 
begin work early next week. They were delayed in August by rain events which pushed their 
schedule farther out. The Board approved the FY16-17 paving program at its regular July meeting. 
Once the resurfacing is completed, we will have roads restriped and directional arrows will be 
placed at the Town Hall to highlight the entrance and exit directions. 

AMI Water Meter Project 

 We are in the process of working with Carolina Meter (our AMI water meter vendor) and 
Harris Software (our financial software company) to ensure that the new cellular water meter 
devices work accurately and effectively with our billing software. We have had a conference call 
with both parties, and currently Harris’s software development team is working to coordinate with 
the team at Badger to make this happen. I do not have an anticipated start date for the new AMI 
technology as it is dependent, largely, on the time it takes for Harris to coordinate their software 
with the meters. 

VoIP Phone Technology 

 Staff did meet with VC3 representatives this month to begin our transition to the Voice 
Advantage VoIP phone system. This should be a fairly seamless process with the most time 
existing between VC3 and our current phone provider as they port our telephone numbers over. 
We anticipate a December start date for this new phone system. 



Police Body Camera Test and Evaluation 

 The Police Department continues to evaluate new body camera software and technology. 
We have reviewed GoPro cameras and software provided by Intrensic and are still evaluating their 
performance compared to the Taser software and Wolfcom option. During the last meeting, 
Commissioner Kelly asked whether the Town had applied for any of the funding available from 
the State Legislature regarding body cameras. The Town did amend an earlier grant application 
for these cameras, and this grant was awarded and paid out during last year’s budget and resulted 
in the purchase of additional Wolfcom body cameras. 

Official Payments  

 We continue to move forward with the online payment system applications and are working 
with ACI/Official Payments as our vendor for these transactions. Mr. Clarke reviewed agreement 
language between the Town and ACI last month and recommended several changes to their 
standard agreement, which ACI accepted. We are currently in the process of finalizing the account 
set up with First Citizens Bank and hope to have this all completed within the next four to six 
weeks. 

 

























 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 

To: Mayor and Commissioners 
From: Jonathan Kanipe, Town Administrator 
Re: Request to Amend Existing Sign for Johnson, Vollmerhausen, & Gates, PLLC 
Date: September 8, 2016 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background  

 The Town Code, Section 15-2, provides that the Board of Commissioners approve signs 
erected within the Town limits. Johnson, Vollmerhausen, and Gates PLLC, at 1265 Hendersonville 
Road currently has a sign that was approved by the Board some time ago.  

Action Requested 

The name of the business, formerly, was Johnson and Vollmerhausen. Ms. Heather Gates 
has joined as a partner and the business has rebranded themselves. As such, they wish to amend 
the existing sign as detailed on the following pages and with the attached design. The new sign 
will be the same size as the current sign. Ms. Gates has also asked permission to raise the sign by 
12 inches, if necessary, and asks for Board approval for this as well. 

 







 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 

To: Mayor and Commissioners 
From: Jonathan Kanipe, Town Administrator 
Re: Presentation from MAHEC regarding Secondary Drive Access from Vanderbilt Road 
Date: September 8, 2016 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background  

 The Mountain Area Health Education Center (MAHEC) will present plans to the Board of 
Commissioners for a secondary entrance/exit drive onto their campus from Vanderbilt Road. 
MAHEC received funding from the State Legislature allowing construction of a new building, 
which will house the western branch of the UNC School of Medicine, as well as a new partnership 
between UNC-A, MAHEC, and UNC-Chapel Hill. The driveway is being requested in conjunction 
with this project. Prior to this memorandum, I provided the Board with a set of plans for the entire 
development, including the driveway proposal. The driveway segment of those plans is included 
with this memo. 

Process 

 MAHEC’s process for the construction of their Building Number Four, parking garage, 
and secondary driveway is twofold. They are presenting plans to the Board of Adjustments on 
Monday, September 12, 2016 in order to receive a conditional use permit for this project. The 
conditional use permit is required as a result of the MAHEC campus being a planned united 
development within the Town’s R-5 district. The decision of the Board of Adjustment will not be 
known by the publication of this agenda packet, but I will inform the Board as to the disposition 
of that hearing on Monday evening. 

Driveway Access Approval 

 The proposed driveway access is located on the eastern side of Vanderbilt Road north of 
Interstate 40 on property owned by Biltmore Farms. Biltmore Farms and MAHEC are in 
discussions regarding the property, but Biltmore Farms has provided assurances that they are in 
agreement with the driveway location as currently proposed. MAHEC may provide a more formal 
document stipulating as such at the Board meeting, but as of this writing, that is not available. 

 The property owned by Biltmore Farms is zoned P-S (Public Service). The Town’s Zoning 
Ordinance requires that the Board of Adjustments review any land disturbing activity, and 



specifically mentions driveways, that are located in the P-S district. Further, the Town Code 
requires that the Town Board of Commissioners approve any new driveway constructions that 
connect to a public road over a town right of way.  

 Mr. Clarke and I came to the conclusion that the driveway then must be reviewed and 
approved by both the Boards of Adjustment and Commissioners. The pertinent portions of the 
Town Code and Zoning Ordinance are attached to this memorandum for further background 
information and clarification.  

Determination by the Board 

 The Board may determine at this meeting to approve or disapprove this request by 
MAHEC, or you may ask for further information before making a decision. The Board of 
Adjustments has thirty (30) days from the hearing to make a determination, so it is possible that 
the Board of Adjustments may not rule on the matter on Monday, September 12. Again, I will alert 
you all to the disposition of the matter prior to our meeting on Tuesday. 

 Please let me know if you require further information. 

  



Excerpts from the Zoning Ordinance 

Section 504.06 

P-S Public Service District. This district is designed to provide for open green spaces, including 
forestation and other natural vegetation throughout the jurisdiction. It is to be used to protect the 
ambiance of the community by providing a series of natural buffers between residential and 
nonresidential development. It is expressly intended that any structures and/or buildings shall be 
prohibited except as associated with a public park or recreational area. Any land disturbing activity 
such as driveway connections or landscaping shall be approved by the Board of Adjustment.  

NOTE: A specific landscaping plan prepared by an appropriate professional shall be submitted to 
the Board of Adjustment which shall detail all plantings or reforesting to take place as part of the 
land disturbing activity.  

 

Excerpt from the Town Code 

Section 15-4 

No person, firm, corporation, governmental body or agency shall construct or cause to be 
constructed any drive or entrance way upon or connecting to any public street or road shoulder in 
the Town of Biltmore Forest which drive or entrance way shall serve or be designed to serve 
dwelling(s), residence(s), building(s), business (es) or separately platted lot(s), or any area, without 
first receiving written permission from the Biltmore Forest Board of Commissioners. This 
Ordinance shall not, however, apply to those applicants who receive driveway entrances by 
obtaining a Certificate of Zoning Compliance for a new residence. The Board may grant or deny 
permission or may grant permission upon such terms as it, in its discretion, deems reasonably 
necessary to protect the best interest of the Town.  

 

 



CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

PROJECT:

REVISIONS:

COPYRIGHT

FROM LS3P ASSOCIATES LTD.

ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDYEAR

C-200

BUILDING FOUR
SITE PLAN

JRC

GTJ

MAHEC
BUILDING #4

08.29.16

Know what's

WGLA #: 16157

MAHEC BUILDING NO. 1

40,000 SF

M
AH

EC
 BU

ILD
IN

G
 N

O
. 2

50,000 SF

FU
TU

R
E

  P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
E

C
K

 - 4 LE
V

E
LS

U
S 25  H

EN
D

ER
SO

N
VILLE R

O
A

D

V
A

N
D

E
R

B
IL

T 
R

O
A

D

Preliminary
Not For

Construction

F:
\U

SE
RS

\T
om

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
M

A
H

EC
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

4\
dw

g\
16

15
7-

C-
20

0-
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

-c
ol

or
.d

w
g,

 8
/2

9/
20

16
 1

:0
1:

15
 P

M
, 1

:1
39

.5
35





 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 

To: Mayor and Commissioners 
From: Jonathan Kanipe, Town Administrator 
Re: Presentation and Discussion of Amendments to Tree Protection Ordinance 
Date: September 8, 2016 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background  

 Potential amendments to the Tree Protection Ordinance have been reviewed for a little over 
one year, all with a goal of modernizing and strengthening our existing ordinance. Town staff 
worked with both the Town Attorney and Mr. Rusty Rhea, Town tree consultant, on presenting 
modifications to the ordinance. The multiple purposes behind these changes were distinct but 
complimentary: to continue the strong tradition of protecting trees in the Town and surrounding 
forest while also recognizing that many trees are aging out and may become hazardous to 
surrounding structures, roadways, and people. It was also important to recognize that required 
replanting in densely wooded areas is not practical or beneficial to the health of a forested 
ecosystem.  

Recommended Amendments 

 The attached drafts to the Town’s Tree Protection Ordinance accomplish the defined 
purpose. The changes clarify that the Town Administrator, or his/her designee, has the ability to 
make a determination as to whether protected trees that are removed must be replaced. This will 
be done based on a basal area scale, which utilizes a wedge prism to verify the density of a lot. 
The Town has worked with Mr. Rhea on this method and believes this will remove any subjectivity 
from the ordinance about whether trees are required to be replaced or not.   

 The proposed amendments also include a new review threshold for tree removal on a large 
scale. Currently, the Town Board of Adjustments must approve the removal of ten (10) or more 
Protected Trees. This is the case only if the requesting party does not intend to replant at the level 
as required by the ordinance. The new amendment includes a larger threshold review, and requires 
that the Board of Commissioners review and approve the removal of thirty (30) or more Protected 
Trees. This change underscores the belief that the Town believes strongly in the protection of its 
trees and forested environment, and any large scale removal plan must only be undertaken after 
serious forethought and rationale is provided to the Town’s elected body and approval is granted 
by that body. This type of review is similar (while in an altogether different respect) to the higher 



level review required for large scale developments in other towns. It is not uncommon for certain 
developments to have administrative levels of review, appointed board levels of review, and finally 
elected board reviews. 

 The amendments as proposed were reviewed by Mr. Rhea and he, as well as Mr. Clarke, 
are in agreement with these changes. 

Further Information 

 The Board may wish to consider this item on Tuesday or just want to review and provide 
additional thoughts before next month’s meeting. If I can provide any more information or further 
detail, please let me know. 



83 R&S 1694326_1 

CHAPTER 19 
 

 
Section.19-1. Purpose 

TREE PROTECTION 

 

In order to maintain the unique characteristics of the Town of Biltmore Forest as a 
residential neighborhood with a 75-year history beginning as part of the Vanderbilt Estate, it 
is necessary to preserve the quality and flavor that form so much of the traditional 
appearance of Biltmore Forest as a true forest. This is particularly true of trees along the 
roads and around the perimeter of lots. Reference is hereby made to Section 1109 of the 
Town Zoning Ordinance relating to removal of natural vegetation, which section is routinely 
involved when residences or other structures are placed on a lot.  The importance of tTrees 
provide is recognized for their shade, cooling, noise and wind reduction, , prevent soil 
erosion erosionprevention, oxygen productionproduce oxygen,, filter dust dustfiltration, 
absorb carbon dioxide dioxideabsorption, wildlife habitat, , and aesthetic enhancement in the 
Town.  of all real property and their contribution to the well-being of the citizens of the 
Town. Trees provide a buffer, a natural canopy, and are a hallmark of the Town requiring 
protection. Damage to and removal of , and damage to or removal of protected trees 
requires regulation and control. 

 
Section.19-2. Identification 

 

For purposes of this Ordinance, a protected tree ("Protected Tree") is any tree six inches or 
more in diameter at height of 4 ½ feet from the ground (DBH-Diameter at Breast Height), 
that is in sound, healthy condition. Preservation of protected treesProtected trees is the 
intent of this Ordinance. 

 
Section.19-3. Permits 

 

No person shall remove or in any way damage any pProtected tTree without first filing an 
application for said removal, and receiving a permitapproval from the Town Administrator 
or his designee. For further purposes of this Ordinance, residential lots shall be separated 
into two sections: first, that section of the lot around the perimeter within the front, side, or 
rear yard setback lines, as the same are variously defined and referred to in the Town's 
Zoning Ordinance, Section 401, and Article VII, "Dimensional Requirements." The Town 
Administrator in his or her own discretiondiscretion can allow the removal of up to three 
pProtected tTrees within these portions of the lot. Secondly, within the area remaining in 
the central portion of the lot or site, and on which structures or improvements may be 
located, the Town Administrator, in his own discretion, can allow up to ten protected 
treesProtected Trees be removed.[We could simplify this section by saying it this way; The 
Town Administrator, in his or her discretion, can allow the removal of up to three Protected 
Trees in the perimeter of the lot within the front, side or rear yard setbacks, as such setbacks 
are defined in the Town's Zoning Ordinance. Within the remaining central portion of the 
Lot, and on which structures or improvements may be located, the Town Administrator, in 
his or her discretion, may allow up to ten Protected Trees to be removed.  

 



84 
R&S 1694326_1 

However, iIf the Town Administrator concludes that the removal of the number of treesof 
trees requested would be undesirable, and not within the letter or intent of this Ordinance, he 
or she may refuse to issue such a permit, or permit the removal  aof a lesser number of trees. 
Further, in his or her discretion, the Town Administrator can request that the applicant  
aprovide a survey to show theshowing the location, size and type of  pProtected  Ttrees on 
site, including common scientific names. Applicant has the right to appeal any action taken 
by the Town Administrator to the Board of Adjustments. The survey shall clearly indicate 
which pProtected tTrees are indicated for removal and which will be left undisturbed. In the 
case of new construction, the site plan must show location of the buildings, driveways,  



85 R&S 1694326_1 

terraces, etcand other structures on the property. All pProtected t Trees on the site shall be 
clearly tagged as to the retention or removal, thus preventing removal or damage to trees 
intended to remain once land disturbance or construction begins.  
 
Section 19-4. Applications for Removal of Protected Trees in Excess of Ten (10)  
An application for a permit to remove more than ten (10) Protected Trees  in excess of the 
number permitted within the discretion of the Town Administrator willmust be presented 
directly to the Board of Adjustment., up to removal of thirty (30) protected trees.  
 
An application A request for the removal of thirty (30) or more pProtected trTrees on a 
property must be submitted to will be considered by the Board of Commissioners. Such an 
application will be considered on case-by-case  on an individual basis. , and tThe 
cumulative removal of of thirty (3) or more pProtected tTrees in one year of up to thirty 
(30) trees will result in a formal review by the Board of Commissioners. The Board may 
grant or deny permission, or may grant permission upon such terms as it, in its discretion, 
deems reasonably necessary to protect the best interest of the Town. The terms and 
conditions imposed by the Board of Commissioners may include a requirement to plant 
replacement trees.  
 [Should we say what the BOC might do such as require replanting?] 

 
Section 19-5. Removal of Dead, Diseased, and Hazardous Trees. 
A tree that is dead, produces no foliage during normal growing season, or a tree that is 
diseased or storm damaged to the extent that it is structurally compromised and, thus, poses 
a safety hazard, or a tree that, for any other reason, poses a safety hazard can only be 
removed by the property owner after notifying the Town Administrator, of the plans to 
remove said tree(s) and being given approval to remove said tree(s). If deemed appropriate, 
the Town Administrator or the Board of Adjustment can require the property owner to 
retain a certified arborist to render an opinion as to the health and structural integrity of the 
tree(s) in question and report said findings, in writing, to the Town before final approval is 
given. The Town reserves the right to consult with its tree specialist to confirm the health 
and condition of any tree(s) prior to removal. 

 
Section.19-46. Pre-Construction cConference & Supervision 

 

Prior to the commencement of any pre-construction land-clearing or soil disturbance, a pre- 
construction conference will take place between the responsible representative of the Town 
and the applicant to review procedures for protection and management of all pProtected 
tTrees and other landscape elements identified in the approved landscape plan. The 
applicant will designate one or more persons to be , responsible for ensuring the protection 
of new or existing landscaping elements to be preserved. The responsible person shall be 
present on site whenever activity is taking place that could damage or disturb such landscape 
elements, and will notify the town Administrator that related activity is taking place. 

 
The Town Administrator shall have developed sites inspected frequency frequently to 
insure ensure that the work is conforming to the approved landscape plan and the 
applicable sections of this ordinance. 



86 R&S 1694326_1 

 
Prior to the commencement of any pre-construction land-clearing or soil disturbance, the 
developer / contractor shall be required to sign a document agreeing to abide by the 
conditions stipulated in this ordinance. At the option of the town, a compliance bond may 
be required, see Section 19-13.-12. 

 
Section.19-57. Enforcement 

 

If any unauthorized removal, cutting or damage to Protected  tTrees takes place, the Town 
Administrator shall issue a Stop-Work Order which shall remain in effect until all 
corrections are made that are necessary to confirm this Chapter. 



87 R&S 1694326_1 

Section.19-68. Dip Line Protection 
 

The health of pProtected tTrees requires the prevention of soil disturbance within the drip 
line of the trees. Covering this area with pavement or other materials, including excess soil, 
can affect thee health of the tree. Landscape plans, to the extent feasible, shall protect this 
area around the tree. 

 
Section.19-79. Replacement of Trees 

 

Any pProtected  Ttrees that are removed must be replaced in that particular area of the 
property at a replacement ratio of 2 to 1 (inches in diameter); that is, the diameters of the 
young trees (measured one foot from the ground level) used in replacement of each 
removed tree must total at least one half the Diameter diameter at Bbreast Hheight of the 
removed tree. Any replacement tree must be in the ground within eighteen (18) months of 
removal of original trees.  
 
Depending on extenuating circumstances related to proximity of other trees and/or 
structures, lesser quantities of or fewer replacement trees can be authorized by the Town 
Administrator, or by the Board of Adjustment in the case of an appeal from or the Town 
Administrator.Administrator. The location of such replacement trees shall be in an area 
where survival is more likely to occur.  The Town Administrator, or his or her designee, 
may utilize a wedge prism to determine the basal area of the wooded area as a guide in 
determining whether replacement trees are warranted. I agree with your comment – As I 
recall the discussions with Nelson and Rusty, it often does not make sense to plant 
replacement trees in an area where they will not grow due to the presence of remaining 
larger trees. So, you might say "lesser quantities or fewer trees," and" in a location or 
locations where such replacement trees are more likely to survive." 

 
Section.19-810. Inspections 

 

All pProtected tTrees designated to remain, pursuant to a tree survey, plus any replacement 
trees, shall be inspected by the Town Administrator or his designeeated person one year 
following any construction and/or replacement trees, to ensure that they are surviving in a 
healthy condition. Any repair or further replacement of the new plantings that did not 
survive will be determined by tThe Town Administrator can require replacement or 
replanting of replacement trees. 

 
Section.19-911. Appeals 

 

Any person who feels aggrieved under strict enforcement of this ordinance by any 
administrative official may file, within five days after such aggrievement, a petition to have 
such cases reviewed and acted upon, in regular session, by the Board of Adjustment, the 
decision of which on all matters shall be final,. Subject only to a Petition for a Writ of 
Certiorari to the Superior Court. 

 
Section.19-1012. Penalties 

 



88 R&S 1694326_1 

The penalty for vViolation of ng this ordinance shall constitute a misdemeanor as  is set out 
in North Carolina General Statute Section 14-4. Each day of continued violation shall 
constitute  be a separate offense. Pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes, G.S. 160A-
175, the Town may also assess a civil penalty for violation of this ordinance. Upon 
determining that a violation ariance has occurred, the Town Administrator shall record the 
nature of the violation, and forward a copy of this record to the violator by certified mail. 
The violator shall have 30 days from receipt of the  toletter to accomplishcorrect the 
violation.  compliance with the provisions of the ordinance. If the violation is not corrected 
within 30 days, Upon failure to do so, the Town Administrator shall proceed to charge the  
Vviolatormay proceed with criminal charges pursuant  under the provisions of 
To N.C.G.S. 14-4, and take such other enforcement action as may be necessary to carry out 
the purposes of this Ordinance including the assessment of a civil penalty or the seeking of 
an injunctive relief. . 



89 R&S 1694326_1 

Section.19-1113. Bond 
 

At then option of the Town, a bond or other type of guarantee con be required of the 
property owner when initiating new construction, to ensure that all permits and agreements 
are met, to the satisfaction of the Town. 

 
Section.19-12. Revision Provision 

 

For the first five years after its passage, this Chapter shall be reviewed annually by the 
Town Administrator with the advice of the Board of Adjustment or designee appointed by 
the Town Board of Commissioners. The review will be presented to the Town Board, and 
shall assess the effectiveness of the ordinance, and recommend any necessary revisions or 
additions. 



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 

To: Mayor and Commissioners 
From: Jonathan Kanipe, Town Administrator 
Re: Consideration of Amendment to FY16-17 Fee Schedule 
Date: September 8, 2016 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background  

 The Board approved changes to the fee schedule at its regular June meeting. This fee 
schedule was effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017. An 
increase in the water tap fee was meant to be included on this revised schedule of fees but upon 
review was not listed. We have received no new tap fees in the intervening three months. 

Action Requested 

Staff requests formal approval of an increase in the fee for water taps for residential 
customers. This increase would raise the fee from $1,770.00 to $2,000.00 and is reflective of the 
increased cost of materials to install a water tap. The fee has not been altered for some time. The 
actual cost of materials for a water tap is $1,696.00 which is not inclusive of the labor cost to the 
Town. As a basis for comparison, a similar 5/8” water meter tap for the City of Asheville costs 
$2,395.12. 

If approved, this fee increase will go into effect immediately.  

 


	01_2016-09-13 BOC Agenda
	02_2016-08-16 BOC Minutes
	03a_Skyland FD Report
	03b_PD R eport
	03c_Public Works Report
	03d_Memo re TA Report
	03e_August 2016 Financials
	SKM_284e16090913590
	SKM_284e16090914000

	04a_Memo re Johnson and Vollmerhausen Sign Change
	04b_75683 JVG 8x5 sign
	04c_Current sign
	05a_Memo re MAHEC Driveway Request
	05b_Driveway Segment from MAHEC Bldg 4 Biltmore Forest Submittal 082916
	06a_Memo re Tree Protection Ordinance
	06b_Tree Protection JBK _ BC Edits 9916
	07a_Memo re Tap Fee Increase



